
Nursing Services (Annual Contract) 

Number: RFP 23-21 

Addendum # 4 

Proposals Due:  December 13, 2022 
 
 

The information contained in this document shall become an official part of the original 

document and shall be acknowledged as noted on the Certification Form (Form 1) of 

solicitation document in the space provided.  Failure to acknowledge receipt of an 

addendum may result in a status of non-responsive.  Firms are encouraged to review the 

contents of this document and to respond accordingly. 

 

Addendum No. 4 is issued to answer questions submitted prior to the inquiry period deadline. 

The questions and answers are as follows: 

 

No. Questions Answers 

1. The Tandym Group is a Staffing Firm, are we able 

to submit a response to this RFP? 

Yes 

2. Is Savannah-Chatham County Public School 

System seeking per diem, local or travel staff to 

fill their needs? 

This is a 1:1 student nurse for SWDs. 

Assignment of one individual would be 

preferred and per diem staff when the assigned 

1:1 nurse is out. 

3. How many vendors received this RFP?   The District submitted an announcement of the 

solicitation to be advertised in the Savannah 

Morning News, the solicitation is posted on the 

District’s Purchasing website, and it was also 

submitted to the Georgia Procurement Registry 

to be post to their website. 

4. Why is the contract out for bid? Is it required to 

be put out for bid? 

The District is required to request services 

through the competitive process.  

5. Is Savannah-Chatham County Public School 

System satisfied with the current provider (s) of 

services? 

Yes 

6. Are we required to submit pricing for all titles 

included in the RFP? 

Please submit pricing for this proposal on form 

12 on page 51 (Sealed Fee Proposal) 

7. How many vendors is Savannah-Chatham County 

Public School System planning on awarding? 

The District has the option to award to multiple 

vendors. 

8. What was the spend on this contract in 2019, 2020 

and 2021? 

2019: $14,084.89; 2020: $144,392.25; 2021: 

$29,171.48 

9. Has Savannah-Chatham County Public School 

System contracted for temporary medical services 

in the past? 

Yes. 

10. If yes, what was Savannah-Chatham County 

Public School System charged per hour per title? 

Sped does not have the hourly rate charged and 

it is unclear what is being asked per title. 

11. Who were/are the previous incumbent (s)?   The current firms for Nursing Services are: 

Delta-T Group; EDU Healthcare; Suwannee 

Medical; ATC Healthcare Services; Maxim 

Healthcare 

12. How many vendors does Savannah-Chatham 

County Public School System currently work with 

for temporary medical staffing?   

Currently there are five (5) vendors on our 

contract. See answer to #11. 
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13. Is this RFP seeking new firms to add on to the 

current vendor panel or bring in completely new 

vendors? 

This solicitation will award new contracts. 

14. How many estimated nurses are expected to be 

utilized for this RFP? 

Sped currently utilizes 4-5 nurses depending on 

student attendance and IEP requirements. 

15. What is the total spending budget for temporary 

staff?  

Information is not available. 

16 Are we looking for our local license (in IL)?  Or 

should I register somewhere specific with the 

State of Georgia?  

Page 17, Section 3.0 Scope of Services 

Requested by RFP. 

17 When referring to a business license, what exactly 

is required?  In Georgia, I do not see that a Nurse 

Agency or Placement agency license is 

required?  Would I include our local business 

license? 

Page 17, Section 3.0 Scope of Services 

Requested by RFP. 

18 Can the district please clarify how needs for 

vendor supplied contractors will be disseminated 

to awardees post award? 

If multiple contracts are awarded, they will be 

award in order of ranking. 

19 Can the district please provide a detailed 

explanation for how points will be awarded for the 

pricing section of this solicitation (i.e. lowest bill 

rate receives maximum points, and next lowest 

vendor receives a prorated amount; lowest bill 

rate receives maximum points, and the next lowest 

vendor receives a predetermined amount of 

points)? 

Firm A - $1.00   

Firm B - $2.00  

Firm C - $3.00  

A = Lowest cost receive 30 points 

A /B = .50 

A/C = .333 

A = 30 points 

B = 15 points 

C = 9.99 points 

20 When is the estimated contract award date, and 

how will the district communicate award status to 

vendors? 

The estimated contract award date is January 

2023. Vendors will be notified by letter via 

email. 

21 How many vendors does the district expect to 

award a contract to for the services requested in 

this solicitation? 

See answer to question #7. 

22 Can the district please provide incumbent 

information and current bill rates for contracts in 

place for similar services? 

See information attached. 

23 What is the expected amount of full-time, vendor 

supplied (RN’s, LPN’s) needed during the 2022-

23 SY? 

See answer to questions #14 

24 Can the district please provide the total amount of 

full-time, vendor supplied (RN’s, LPN’s) utilized 

during the 2021-22 SY? 

Sped utilized 4-5 due to COVID concerns and 

parents keeping their child home. 

25 Can the district please provide the total amount of 

billing, broken down by vendor and classification, 

for all vendor supplied (RN’s, LPN’s) utilized 

during the 2021-22 SY? 

SPED: 

ATC: $4,650.00 

ESS $54,521.48 

 

26 Can the district please describe the supplies and That information will be provided to the 
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materials that contracted providers will have 

access to at the district? (wifi, computer access, 

testing material, office supplies, etc.)? 

awarded vendor(s). 

27 What travel between schools is expected for these 

providers? 

For substitute nurses working in school clinics, 

there is minimal travel required.  This only 

occurs if a substitute nurse reports to one site 

and a site with higher acuity requires the nurse 

to change to an alternate assignment. 

28 What are the district expectations of contract 

providers to assist in Medicaid reimbursement 

documentation services? 

At this time, substitute nurses working in school 

clinics are not required to bill Medicaid. 

 

29 Will the district accept contract exceptions? Please see Section D, Page 27 “Exceptions”. 

30 Can the district please clarify what is meant in the 

solicitation for “reporting”? Is the district asking 

for Medicaid Reimbursement assistance? 

Information is not readily available. 

31 Can Section 11. Liquidated Damages for Delay be 

removed from pages 2-3 of the Contract for 

Goods and/or Services? 

No. 

32 Can Section 12. Supervision of Contractor 

Personnel on page 3 be updated to a District 

responsibility? 

No. This is the service provider’s responsibility. 

33 Is SCCPSS looking to fill FTE nursing positions, 

or is this ONLY for short-term/temporary nursing 

services to fill vacation/sick outages by the 

district? 

See Section 5.0. 

34 We provide nursing services as well as school-

based therapists to school districts. Will this 

qualify us as an organization ‘existing for the 

primary purpose of providing Nursing Services’? 

SPED cannot determine what qualifies an 

organization for the primary purpose of nursing 

services. 

35 Who are your current vendors and what are their 

rates for Nursing Services (RN and LPN)? 

See information attached. 

36 Have these vendors been able to meet all of your 

nursing needs? 

Yes. 

37 How many nurses (FTE) did each vendor provide 

to your District? 

See answer to question 25 

38 Will nurses have access to materials, PPE, 

supplies, equipment, kits, and protocols provided 

by your schools? 

Substitute nurses working in school clinics have 

access to all supplies needed to conduct their 

job safely.  Additionally, substitute nurses 

working in school clinics have ongoing access 

to support from both the District Cluster Nurse 

assigned to their school and to the District  

Nursing Administrator. 

39 Will assigned nurses have access to computers/ 

laptops and printers provided by your schools? 

Substitute nurses working in school clinics 

generally do not have computer or laptop 

access.  Need is evaluated on a case by case 

basis if the assignment if over an extended 

period.  Substitute nurses working in school 
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clinics do have copier access if needed. 

40 Is the contracting agency able to bill for both 

direct and indirect treatment time (paperwork, 

meeting, teacher consultations, etc.)? 

Yes, but not to exceed the allowable hours. 

41 Do you require that nursing resumes and/or 

licensure be submitted with the proposal? 

See Section 6.0, Page 19. 

42 Can SCCPSS provide clarification of the ‘most 

recent quality assurance audit/report’ you are 

looking for regarding accreditation/certification? 

SPED does not have access to individuals with 

this information 

43 Will you also clarity what type of procedures are 

expected for ‘defending litigation’? 

Information is not readily available. 

44 Page 6, Section P, Could you clarify the LMWBE 

policy for this RFP? Is LMWBE subcontracting 

required for supplying clinicians? 

The LMWBE Policy is put in place in effort to 

maximize participation within our solicitation 

process in obtaining contractors and/or 

subcontractors. 

45 Is this a new solicitation? Yes. 

46 Could you provide an estimated budget or value 

for this project? 

Information is not readily available. 

47 Is there an estimated caseload for an RN at a 

given time? 

No. 

48 Is there a time frame for an estimated start date for 

this project? 

See answer to question #20 

50 Who are the current incumbent vendors? See answer to question #11 

51 What are the current hourly bill rates by vendor? See answer to question #22 

52 Is the county satisfied with the current vendors? If 

not, why not? 
See answer to question #2 

53 Kindly specify total number of FTE’s working 

and current $ value spent 
See answer to question #8 

54 Can you provide the previous 3 years budget 

spend? 
See answer to question #8 

55 Is this multi or single award? See answer to question #7 

56 What is the anticipated # of full-time or # of part-

time positions? 

Substitute nurses working in school clinics 

function in a temporary capacity only. 

57 Will any of the staff be required to bus to and 

from school with the students? 
No. 

58 What is the anticipated start date of the contract? See answer to question #20 

59 Can you please provide a list of incumbent 

vendors and their bill rates. 
See answer to question #22 

60 Where can we find previous bid award 

information for the requested services? 
On the district’s website 

61 What is the total budget/expenditure allotted for 

this RFP? 
See answer to question #46 

62 Can we provide pricing ranges on select 

disciplines? 
The solicitation is asking for an hourly rate.  See 

page 51, Sealed Fee Proposal, form 12. 

63 Please clarify Medicare/Medicaid Billing: Will 

the vendor be required to bill Medicaid with direct 

reimbursement going to the vendor through the 

Medicaid billing is completed through the 

District’s vendor with payment to the District 
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vendors Medicaid billing number? Or will the 

vendor be required to enter Medicaid billing 

through the districts billing documents for the 

district to be reimbursed directly by Medicaid? 

64 Can the vendor bill separately for Clinical 

supervision if required? 
This is a nursing question and outside the scope 

of SPED. 

65 How many billable hours are in a typical school 

day? 

7.5 

66 How is billing time for contract FTE vs. 

substitutes captured today? Is the principal 

signature required?  

Principal signature to verify 

67 How long have the incumbent suppliers held this 

contract? 
The current contract is an annual contract with 

the option to renewal for two (2) additional one 

(1) year terms for a total of three (3) years. 

68 Are you satisfied with the incumbent suppliers? If 

not, what are you unsatisfied with 
See answer to question #2 

69 What is the expectation and frequency for on-call 

needs? 
Substitute nurses working in school clinics are 

not required to be on-call. 

70 What is expectation and frequency for replacing a 

candidate that is ill/calls off? 
Substitute nurses working in school clinics are 

expected to communicate a call out to their 

respective employer.  The employer should 

notify the SCCPSS District Nursing 

Administrator of any change in staffing that 

occurs as a result of the call out. 

71 Does the district fingerprint and badge? How long 

once confirmed does the process take for the 

clinician to start? 

This is the responsibility of the service provider. 

See section 4.0 Criminal Background/Security 

Checks. 

72 Do you anticipate your current staffing volume to 

change in the next year or next 2 years? For 

example, do you have any significant projects 

coming up (vaccination, screening, new programs, 

grants, ESSRIII positions, etc.)? 

It is difficult to anticipate the needs for 

substitute nurses in our clinics.  Life situations 

such as births, deaths, illnesses, and as we have 

seen, a worldwide pandemic, can drastically 

affect site needs. At this time however, no major 

changes are anticipated in our projected needs. 

73 Please clarify the reporting structure for 

Supervision of contract staff within the district. 

What position provides clinical supervision within 

the district? 

Substitute nurses working in school clinics 

should report questions or concerns directly to 

their assigned Cluster nurse, to the site 

administrator where they are working, and to 

their respective employer.  The District Nursing 

Administrator is also available to assist with 

concerns if needed.   

Substitute nurses working in clinics are under 

the immediate direction of the site 

administrator.  Clinical supervision is provided 

by the assigned District Cluster Nurse. 

74 Are IEP and 504 documents, plan documents and 

student records kept in an online system or hard 

copy at the district? What system? 

Yes, PowerSchool Special Programs 
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75 Does the district provide student logs, 

documentation forms, etc?  
Substitute nurses working in school clinics have 

access to student medication logs and health 

plans.   

76 Are the medical personnel’s license, CPR card, 

resume and proof of references/background 

checks required upon submission of bid or upon 

award? If required on bid is an excel document 

acceptable? 

Please see section 6.0 on page 19. 

78 Would you accept bids from a Staffing Agency?  See answer to question #1. 

79 Please clarify if the district or vendor provides 

materials (i.e. assessments, testing kits, 

protocols/scoring sheets, computers, printers, 

PPE, etc.). In unexpected situations, would this 

differ for teletherapy/remote services? 

See answer to question #38 & question #39.  

80 Do you accept new graduates if the vendor 

provides mentorship? 

The District is requesting proposals from 

qualified service providers. 

81 Are we to submit our E-verify Memorandum of 

Understanding as an attachment with our 

response? 

Yes, form 4, page 36, notary is required. 

82 Under “Business Organization,” the RFP 

mentions describing the company’s experience in 

manufacturing (if applicable) and medical billing. 

Please make the following correction in Section 

B: Business Profile, Item “A”, Page 25: 

Provide a brief description of the firm, its 

history, and a statement which describes the 

firm’s experience in providing Nursing Services 

to minor and adolescent children. 

 

 

All other terms and conditions remain unchanged. 

 

End of Addendum #4 to Bid 23-21  


